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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRSE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

The fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong and the
outbreaks in Mainland China, especially Shanghai, (collectively the
“Pandemic”) caused adverse impact on the Group'’s business during the
reporting period. Moreover, the shortage of and fierce competition for
IT talents in Hong Kong caused delays in delivery of some of the projects
and induced increasing staff costs.

Despite the challenges created by the unfavourable business
environment, the Group demonstrated great resilience and managed
to maintain mild increase in total revenue by HK$3.3 million, or 2.6%
to HK$128.6 million (2021: HK$125.3 million) for the first six months
of 2022. The change was mainly due to the growth in revenue from
the Solutions and Integration Services business!" and the Application
Software business? in Hong Kong, offset by the drop in revenue from
the Application Software business in Mainland China and e-Service and
related business?. The gross profit was also improved by HK$3.8 million,
or 5.7% to HK$70.3 million (2021: HK$66.5 million).

Besides, the Group participated in the 2022 Employment Support Scheme
(the “ESS”) and received subsidies of HK$3.7 million (2021: Nil) from the
HKSAR Government (the “Government”). Resulting from that, the other
income and gains, net, increased by HK$3.4 million, or 141.9% to HK$5.8
million (2021: HK$2.4 million). Conversely, the Group’s financial assets and
investment properties suffered valuation losses of HK$1.6 million (2021:
gains of HK$1.2 million) due to bearish market sentiment caused by the
Pandemic.

The overall expenses went up by HK$1.9 million, or 3.9% to HK$50.0
million (2021: HK$48.1 million). The change was mainly due to the
increase in depreciation of right-of-use assets after the renewal of the
tenancy agreement in late 2021. The income tax expense also soared in
respect of the increase in assessable profits generated in Hong Kong.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders slightly improved by HK$0.6 million, or 2.6%
to HK$21.8 million (2021: HK$21.3 million). The basic earnings per share
also rose to 8.86 HK cents (2021: 8.64 HK cents).

In view of a sustained healthy financial position, the Board declared the
distribution of an interim dividend of 6.5 HK cents (2021: 6 HK cents) per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The overall market environment of our Application Software business
was challenging during the reporting period. While there was good
demand for our products and services, the investment decision and
related business activities were continuously hindered by the Pandemic.
In addition, the loss of skilled talents caused by the emigration wave and
the general shortage in IT talents in Hong Kong had slowed down the
development of the Group'’s project delivery capability. Accordingly, the
Group had expanded its software development centre and strengthened
its software development resources pool in Shenzhen.

Despite the unfavourable factors, the Group’s Application Software
business still managed to record mild growth in revenue. However, the
Pandemic and the rising staff costs in Hong Kong had affected the profit
contributions with a single-digit fall compared with the same period last
year.

Benefiting from the strong order backlog brought forward from last year
as well as the increasing recurring maintenance and Software as a Service
(“SaaS”) income, the performance of the Group’s Human Resources
Management Software (“HRMS”) business in Hong Kong grew steadily
during the reporting period.

The Group’s HRMS business in Mainland China was seriously impacted by
the curbs including lockdowns imposed for the outbreak of COVID-19.
The business operation in Shanghai was frozen in April and May
and gradually resumed normal in June. Both the revenue and profit
contributions of the related business recorded a considerable fall in the
first half of 2022.

During the reporting period, the HRMS business continued to receive
repeated orders from existing customers and managed to conclude
new orders from various sectors, including an international brewer, a
multinational cosmetics company, a global mineral exploration company
and a public research institute in Hong Kong.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

The Group’s enterprise software business maintained stable growth
during the reporting period and improved profit contributions to the
Group despite the challenging operating environment. The Enterprise
Procurement Management Software (“EPMS”) business continued its
growth momentum and increased its profit contributions. The Enterprise
Information Management Software (“EIMS”) business experienced softer
revenue but remained a stable contributor of recurring maintenance
income to the Group. In the sluggish retail market, the Enterprise Retail
Management Software (“ERMS”) business still performed fairly and
improved profitability through stringent cost control. The performance
and contributions of CISC Limited kept steady during the reporting
period.

The Group’s EPMS flagship product, ProSmart, continued its market
leading position and gained new customers from commercial and public
sectors during the low tide of the economy. The management anticipated
the market demand would remain promising in the second half of the
year.

The foundation framework developed as a common platform for the
Group's enterprise software products has been further enhanced with
more functionalities to handle customisation without rebuilding the
core. In addition to the low-code front-end designer released last
year, the backend improvement became the variorum integrated with
configurable API framework, server side scripting engine and low SQL
database customisation at the workflow engine.

Solutions and Integration Services

The revenue of the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business
improved by HK$3.2 million, or 7.2% to HK$48.4 million (2021: HK$45.2
million). All business segments under the Solutions and Integration
Services, including the Managed Services', the Development Services!
and the Integration Services!", recorded growth in revenue during the
reporting period. Moreover, due to the decrease in various professional
service and maintenance costs, the profit contributions materially
improved by HK$3.0 million, or 43.6% to HK$9.9 million (2021: HK$6.9
million).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)

The Managed Services business continued to generate stable
maintenance income from the second 10-year services of the Customer
Care and Billing System (“CCBS”) for the Water Supplies Department
under the Government. The management is delighted to report that we
successfully delivered the CCBS’s software enhancement project in June.
Accordingly, the Group started benefiting from cost saving of the related
maintenance cost and began the amortisation of deferred development
costs and charged HK$0.2 million to the statement of profit or loss during
the reporting period.

The performance of Development Services was improved compared
to the same period last year. The deferred delivery schedules carried
forward from the second half of last year were gradually resumed during
the reporting period. The progress of new sales conclusion from the
Government and non-Government organisations was once affected by
the Pandemic at the beginning of the year and gradually resumed to
normal in the second quarter.

Benefiting from completion of various new orders, the Group’s Integration
Services business recorded material growth in its revenue and profit
contributions compared to the same period last year. The Integration
Services business with its major operation in Nanjing was generally not
affected by the Pandemic during the reporting period.

The expansion plan in the Greater Bay Area continued amid the
Pandemic. To accommodate the expanding workforce and the long-
term business development, the Group relocated the resources centre in
Shenzhen to a more spacious office in April 2022.

e-Service and related business

Adversely affected by the Pandemic and slowdown in trade activities
during the reporting period, the Group’s GETS®! business recorded drops
in both revenue and profit contributions. The management is actively
exploring new value-added service offerings to improve the revenue
stream and strengthen our competitiveness in the market.

Investments
The valuation of financial assets and investment properties was adjusted
downwards due to the Pandemic. As a result, the Group’s Investments

segment recorded loss of HK$0.4 million (2021: profit of HK$2.5 million)
in the first half of 2022.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

PROSPECT

In light of the negative business outlook due to the prolonged Pandemic
and global economic uncertainty, the Group expects that the rest of 2022
is still full of challenge. The management will review the existing business
from time to time and take necessary actions to tackle any adverse
impact that might arise. With a strong customer base and stable recurring
incomes, the Group still remains cautiously optimistic about its business
performance in the second half of the year.

Footnotes:

n The Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i)
Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation
and application software development; (ii) Managed Services for the
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services;
(iii) business process outsourcing (“BPQ”) services; and (iv) Integration
Services for the provision of IT systems and network infrastructure
with related design, implementation and ongoing support services.

@ The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision
of application software and e-business services for enterprises
including (i) the provision of enterprise application software with
implementation and ongoing support services for Human Resource
Management, Enterprise Procurement Management, Enterprise
Information Management and Enterprise Retail Management
(collectively the “Application Software”); and (ii) the Government
Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"), cloud services and other related
value-added services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

Bl Since 2004, the Group has been granted a licence (the “GETS Licence”)
from the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group’s GETS Licence was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of
additional six years until the end of 2024.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

For the six month ended 30 June 2022, the Group recorded a mild
increase in total revenue by HK$3.3 million, or 2.6% to HK$128.6 million
(2021: HK$125.3 million). The change was mainly due to increase in
revenue from the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business
and the Group’s Application Software business in Hong Kong, offsetting
by the drop in revenue from Application Software business in the PRC,
e-Service and related business.

The gross profit slightly increased by HK$3.8 million, or 5.7% to HK$70.3
million (2021: HK$66.5 million) because of the saving in various third-
party professional service and maintenance costs incurred by the Group’s
Solutions Services business during the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other income and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

The Group participated in the ESS and was granted HK$3.7 million (2021:
Nil) subsidies from the Government during the reporting period. The
ESS subsidies, which accounted for approximately 6.6% of the local
staff costs incurred during the reporting period, were all consumed by
salary payments. Accordingly, the other income and gains, net increased
by HK$3.4 million, or 141.9% to HK$5.8 million (2021: HK$2.4 million).
Conversely, the Group’s financial assets and investment properties
recorded valuation losses of HK$1.6 million (2021: gains of HK$1.2 million)
due to downtrend market sentiment caused by the Pandemic.

Expenses

Primarily due to increase in depreciation of right-of-use assets, overall
expenses (including the selling and distribution expenses, the general
and administrative expenses, net, the finance cost and the other
expenses) slightly went up by HK$1.9 million, or 3.9% to HK$50.0 million
(2021: HK$48.1 million). The income tax expense increased in line with
increase in assessable profits generated in Hong Kong.

Net profit

In line with the revenue growth, the net profit for the period improved
by HK$0.6 million, or 2.6% to HK$21.8 million (2021: HK$21.3 million).
The net profit margin (profit for the period divided by the revenue)
maintained at 17.0% (2021: 17.0%).

Non-current assets

Amortisation of other intangible assets and depreciation of right-of-use
assets mainly contributed to the decrease of the non-current assets by
HK$6.4 million, or 2.2% to HK$277.7 million (31 December 2021: HK$284.1
million).

Current assets

The current assets slightly dropped by HK$9.9 million, or 2.5% to
HK$387.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$397.2 million). The change was
mainly attributed to the decrease in cash and cash equivalent after the
despatch of 2021 final dividend in June 2022.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFERE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current liabilities and non-current liabilities

The Group's total current and non-current liabilities dropped by HK$8.3
million, or 5.3% to HK$149.3 million (31 December 2021: HK$157.7
million). The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in accruals and
contract liabilities under current contract liabilities and the lease liabilities
under the non-current liabilities.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets of Applications Services business decreased due to
amortisation of other intangible assets while the segment liabilities of the
business dropped in line with decrease in contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services increased in
line with the growth in contract assets while segment liabilities of the
business went up due to the increase in lease liabilities.

Segment assets of Investments business dropped as there were valuation
losses for both investment properties and financial assets in the first half
of 2022.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent as at 30 June 2022
slightly dropped by HK$7.8 million, or 1.5% to HK$514.3 million (31
December 2021: HK$522.1 million). The change was mainly the net result
of the profit earned in the first half of 2022, the purchase of shares held
under the restricted share award scheme and the payment of 2021 final
dividend.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$63.5 million (31 December 2021: HK$63.5 million), listed
equity securities of HK$6.0 million (31 December 2021: HK$7.5 million)
and bank balances of HK$1.4 million (31 December 2021: HKS$1.2 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/performance
bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the Company in
aggregate of HK$112.0 million (31 December 2021: HK$112.1 million) of
which HK$21.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$21.8 million) have been
utilised as at 30 June 2022.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were HK$285.6
million (31 December 2021: HK$298.4 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely
and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to
minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2021: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liabilities was 3.0 (31 December 2021: 3.0) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 22.5% (31
December 2021: 23.1%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2022 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2021 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2022, the Group employed 354 full time employees
and 11 part time employees (31 December 2021: 367 full time employees
and 13 part time employees).

As at 30 June 2022, the Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations
as well as to retain them for the continual development of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

In January 2022, the Group completed the subscription of 10,000 new
shares issued by CISC Limited at a total consideration of HK$1,450,000
and increased its shareholding from 40% to 80% accordingly.

Saved as disclosed in the report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the period and up to the
date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2022.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared the payment of an interim dividend of HK$0.065 (2021:
an interim dividend of HK$0.06) per ordinary share for the six months
ended 30 June 2022.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
5 September 2022 to Tuesday, 6 September 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 September 2022. The
dividend will be distributed on or about Monday, 19 September 2022 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Tuesday, 6 September 2022.
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APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 August 2022
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRmRAIRER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) herein presents the unaudited
interim condensed consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June
2022 together with the comparative figures. These unaudited interim
condensed consolidated results have been reviewed by the Company’s

audit committee.

HMEMEAGERARAR(ARANEES
([ZE2gDBLZENARARERBAT (5
WIAEE)HE-_TE_—_FXA=+H1t
NEARZREEZEREE P HEEER
LEBREHT - WERKEZERERERHES
EEBAARIEZEZESERN -

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT HRGAEEER
ORLOSS
For the six months ended 30 June
BEZEASA=1tHILEXEA
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REERZ) (REEEZ)
Notes HKS$’000 HKS’000
it FET FET
REVENUE A 5 128,582 125,270
Cost of sales and services HE KRR A (58,270) (58,723)
Gross profit EF 70,312 66,547
Other income and gains, net E MR A R a5 5 5,821 2,406
Foreign exchange differences, net M 5 Z R 503 (259)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: ANEEWNE (BE)F5E -
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFELER AR
profit or loss HEE (1,569) 741
Investment properties TEMEE (80) 500
Selling and distribution expenses SHE My AT (15,954) (16,508)
General and administrative expenses, net —#& & 17 59 32 )% 58 (30,395) (27,776)
Finance cost B ER 7 (195) 612)
Other expenses H bR (3,461) (3,246)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B A 2 6 24,982 21,793
Income tax expense FrigfiF 2 8 (3,156) (530)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 HA 3% F 21,826 21,263
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: U AR
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZZPN 21,895 21,390
Non-controlling interests IR (69) (127)
21,826 21,263
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ®B QA RZERKRREN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREF HK cents HK cents
THE PARENT 10 B JEN
Basic AR 8.86 8.64
Diluted e 8.82 8.60
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RRmE 2 E R EE

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1tRHIEAEA

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REgsEz)
HK$’000 HKSs000
FET FiET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 1A R E 21,826 21,263
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2EKRA
Other comprehensive income that maybe A {E1& AifE - H b 2 AU A AT 52
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Al = Eb
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBREECELER
foreign operations (1,827) 776
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AHEEEBALE
THE PERIOD 19,999 22,039
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT AL :
Owners of the parent YNGIE SN 20,068 22,166
Non-controlling interests FE1E I M A (69) (127)
19,999 22,039
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

LRSS

BRIFIRR R

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—Z:=-= —E-—F
AA=+tH +Z-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (EE=Z)
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
k=3 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 11 1,137 1,212
Investment properties "EYEE 12 66,710 66,790
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 13(a) 15,877 18,142
Goodwill BES 14 135,001 135,001
Other intangible assets Hinm&E 15 52,897 56,358
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELER AR BTG
profit or loss — debt investment BE-—AEBKRE 18 2,100 2,100
Deposits g a 2,035 2,419
Deferred tax assets RIEF A& B 21 1,949 2,061
Total non-current assets ERBEEREA 277,706 284,083
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 17 36
Trade receivables FEYE 5 BR K 16 37,615 45,601
Contract assets BREE 17 36,848 25,628
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIA - me REMEY
receivables IE 17,446 15,041
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELER AR MG
profit or loss - listed equity investments & & — FH R ARE 18 5,977 7,546
Tax recoverable AR = TR IE 2,463 3,772
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITHER 1,351 1,193
Cash and cash equivalents RehERABSEE 285,643 298,397
Total current assets MEVEEBE 387,360 397,214
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and JENE SRR - R
accruals B N et A 19 58,944 63,718
Contract liabilities BREE 20 51,355 54,222
Lease liabilities HERE 13(b) 8,320 7,923
Tax payable FE# TR 1A 10,186 7,428
Total current liabilities nBBERE 128,805 133,291
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 258,555 263,923
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 536,261 548,006
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RS B R ()

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-_F —F-—
AA=t+H +ZH=1—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (feEZ)
Notes HKs$’000 HKSs000
btiE FET FiET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables H fth fE A 5/ I8 19 39 -
Contract liabilities AEHEaE 20 1,172 1,850
Lease liabilities HEAaE 13(b) 7,939 10,325
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIREE 21 11,388 12,202
Total non-current liabilities SEMEBERE 20,538 24,377
Net assets AEEE 515,723 523,629
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the BAREEAELESR
parent
Issued capital BEITRA 24,949 24,949
Share premium account %17 B BR 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share RIEA R IR D ZB T 235
award scheme a2k (5,942) (6,011)
Other reserves HAth 1 442,193 422,919
Proposed final dividend BOR R BRI B - 27,180
514,304 522,141
Non-controlling interests FEVE I A 1,419 1,488
Total equity Mg 515,723 523,629
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEEk =y

IR EIR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEEAER
Other reserves
Efoik
Shares held
underthe
Share restricted  Share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  share award payment Gooduwill Reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve funds resnve profits dividend Total interests equity
it
RS
Tirses
S5 Rty HEER RBRR BE fE  EiRB RE  HERH I s
A& AER il i 1 53 i A &e ] a g
5000 5000 5000 5000 HES000 HKS000 HS 000 5000 5000 500 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET AT 7T 7T 7ET 7ET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 (audited) WZEz-§-A-A
(202) 2949 53104 (4480) 5613 (1227) 46 (8) 41336 DXV I ) 139 5155
Proftfor the period HHEEA - - - - 2139 - 2139 (127) 21263
Other comprehensive incomeforthe period: S 2 2 EUA -
Exchange differences on tranlation of 3
foreign operations EizE - - - - - - 776 - - 776 - 76
Total comprehensive income THR2ERAEE
for the period - - - - - - 716 2139 - 2,166 (127 2039
Purchase of shares held under the BEERARN SRS
restricted share award scheme T - - [n) - - - - - - [ - 47
Vesting ofshares held under the BRMBARBEATR
restricted share award scheme hEE - - 1113 (1,113) - - - - - - - -
Share award arangements R EEZS - - - 430 - - - - - 40 - 430
Final 2020 ividend declared ER-RCRERERA - - - - - - - @ o) ) - (29744)
At30 June 2021 (unaudited) R-B--£RAZTH
(FEEH) 24,949 53,104 (3838) 4990 (7227 746 193 432,684 - 505,601 212 507813
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BEEE=Y:

P

BR(E)

BATREARL
Other reserves
AEE
Shares held
underthe
Share restricted  Share-hased Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  share award payment Goodwil Reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
it
Rl
Re%R
2% Rt iEEE BRORR B8 B  EXR3 RE B FEHt L
fikk EER b v L1 L1 B¢ EL & BE 4 B &8
HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 K000
FET iz iz -2 2 FE1 FET FET FET FET Z-2 -2
At January 202 faudited) HZ%2Z§-5-8
(28) 1949 53,104 (6011) 533 (22 6 % B 7180 s 1088 5360
Profitfor the period KBmEA - - - - - 21,895 - 21,895 (69) 2826
Other comprehensive income for the period:  AHEEH2ERA :
Exchange differences on translation of BEENERRELY
foreign operations EfzE (1827) (1827) (1827)
Total comprehensive income FHE2ENAEE
for the period (1,827) 21895 20,068 (69) 19,999
Purchase ofshares held underthe BEERAROZBHEE
restricted share award scheme Th (988) (988) (988)
Vesting of shares held underthe ARHRAZBTHETR
Testricted share award scheme ikt | 1,057 (1,07) - -
Share award arangements Ri%BzH - 306 - - 306 306
Final 2021 dividend declared ER-3--£R8RE @ s ) (27203)
At30June 2022 (unaudited) W-BZZERAZTR
(%228 1949 53,104 (5942) 4,584 (7,221) 746 (875 444965 514304 1419 515,723
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EBRGZERERER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=TRHLEAMEA

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
iz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZBF B HERE
Profit before tax PR A1 i 7 24,982 21,793
Adjustments for: FEEEE
Finance cost BBER 7 195 612
Bank interest income RITHBHA 5 (1,531) (1,110)
Dividend income from listed investmentsat R AFELIEZ AR £
fair value through profit or loss REREWA 5 (194) (249)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE - Bz REHER
and equipment, net ZWes R 6 (1 (12)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: DNTEER/ (W) F5E
Financial assets at fair value through BATELSESAR Y
profit or loss HEE 1,569 (747)
Investment properties SEME 80 (500)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERSHBITE
equipment 6 466 730
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREREZFE 6 4,291 1,835
Impairment of trade receivables, net EWE ZRIREFE 6 299 182
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hip iy &= 6 3,461 3,246
Equity-settled share-based payment et 5 8 AR 2 R 2
expense 306 430
33,923 26,216
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERLD,/(En) 19 (16)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEWE SRR,/ (38 ) 7,649 (6,487)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits T8 15 FU8 ~ 17 & & H 1 JEUR
and other receivables ERD,/(5hn) (2,021) 4,359
Increase in contract assets SHEELMN (11,220) (852)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables N E ZERM - HMER
and accruals FIBEREF AR (4,735) (9,207)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHBEEN/ (RD) (3,545) 4,521
Cash generated from operations REEBRERS 20,070 18,534
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REFBMNEH 122 1,292
Overseas taxes refunded REGINGIA - 12
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMBZHERE
HE 20,192 19,838
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

AR E RS RNER ()

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHLAEA

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—fF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FiET
Net cash flows from operating activities REEHMBEZHEREFE 20,192 19,838
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFB2HERE
Bank interest received B ERITFI S 1,531 1,110
Dividends received from listed investments at 1% /A (B 4% CiB R AT LR
fair value through profit or loss EREMA 194 249
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BMERREIER
equipment (400) (161)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,  HEWE - BB L&XEEE
plant and equipment P15 3R 1 15
Increase in pledged bank deposits SRR TIF LM (158) (258)
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with U BB REI AR BB =@ A
original maturity of more than three months &35 38 R 17757 7 >
when acquired 86,921 29,469
Net cash flows from investing activities REFRDFGECREMNEFHE 88,089 30,424
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING REZHMAZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of shares held under the restricted B8 B G [R #Ii% 7 42T 1B T
share award scheme fhdr) (988) (477)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFNAES D (4,013) (3,035)
Dividend paid BERRE (27,223) (29,744)
Interest paid BERFE (195) (612)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REERDMECREREFHE (32,419) (33,862)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReREFAHEEEZ
EQUIVALENTS 18R 75,862 16,400
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of B Re LERAREEE
period 116,497 227,711
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [ERZ8) v &/ £ 558 (1,695) 678
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRZAESRERRATEE
AT END OF PERIOD 190,664 244,789
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BeRERBRSEELBRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the WAL E BN KM RZ
condensed consolidated statement of fﬁé &7 RAREEE
financial position 285,643 283,241
Non-pledged bank deposits with original iR RS ABR=EA 2
maturity of more than three months when BEERRITEX
acquired (94,979) (38,452)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRGERSRERMRL
condensed consolidated statement of cash iﬁé &ﬁ RABEEE
flows 190,664 244,789
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; the Government Electronic Trading Services
(“GETS"), cloud services and other related value-added services;

. provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (“BPO”") services; and
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022 has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS")
34 Interim Financial Reporting issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read
in conjunction with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, except for the adoption of the following revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the first
time for the current period’s financial information.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,

HKFRSs 2018-2020

Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity
to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As
there were no contingent assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities within the scope of the amendments arising in the
business combination that occurred during the period, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group elected to apply lease modification accounting for
all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
covid-19 pandemic during the period ended 30 June 2022. The
amendment did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of items produced
while making property, plant and equipment available for use
on or after 1 January 2021, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification of the Group’s financial liabilities during the
period, the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

. HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
Illustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; the GETS, cloud services and other related
value-added services;

(b) the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services;
and provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services;
and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that unallocated interest income,
unallocated other income and gains, net, unallocated foreign
exchange differences, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, and corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

T FhHRE | R R

GEmERAT )7

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTER (E)
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (a) K&EDI
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
ERR% BRTERERRE RE a5
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—g-CE -F--%5 CZ®--E -E--F CZBIZE -T--F CZE-ZE -“ZI--%&
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REER) (REBR) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HK$"000 HKS000 HK$"000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
FEr AT FEr AT Fér FAT Fér FET
Segment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external customers HETIAEP
(note5) (Mts) 79,134 79,060 48,442 45,07 1,006 1003 128582 125200%
Otherincomeand gains,net M A i
% 324 1021 2% 1 26 263 5864 1,296
Total 4% 79,458 80,081 48,468 45219 1242 1266 129,168 126,566
Segment results pRiES 21971 23031 9,942 6,922 (449) 2410 31,464 3243
Reconcilition: bk
Unallocated interestincome R AEF EMA 1,531A 1,108
Unallocated otherincomeand ~ AAEEMIAR
gains, et et 3,704 -
Unallocated foreignexchange ~ RARERZE
differences, net FE 503 (259)
Corporate and other PEREMRAR
unallocated depreciation ik (170) (24)
Corporate and other PEREMRAR
unallocated expenses 53 (12,050) (11,197)
Profit before tax RBATRH 24,982 2793



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHTBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #&& DI (FE)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
ERR% BAARREARS k& ag
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“5I-% “E--E —E--E —E--E

kS -2 TR ZBIZE TZR
AAZtE  ZT-B AB=tR Zt-R
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE8R) (B8R (REEK) (8829
HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
FEr AT FEr AT

CECCE +-f CZB-CE +ZA
AA=tR  =t-B #"AZtE =t-E
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REgR)  (02R) (REBK) (820

HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS 000

tér  TEr TEr TET

Segment assets PHEE 212,292 27319 71373 67,729
Reconcilation: i
Comorateand other unallocated 2R ERASEEE
assets
Total assets BELE
Segment liabilities AHEE 93,352 98,930 19,425 16738
Reconcillation: HE -
Corporateand other unallocated R EREH AT EE
liabilities
Totalliabilities BE4E

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HKS128,582,000
(2021: HK$125,270,000) in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains,
net, of HKS5,821,000 (2021: HKS2,406,000) in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

74,796 76,444 364,461 361,492

300,605 319805
665,066 681,297

685 685 113,462 116,353

35,881 41315

149,343 157,668

ER B B4R & B2 & & AR B WA
128,582,000/8 0 (= F = — 4 :
125,270,000 ) °

BIERE B A Ba XA ZARE
E A Rz ) F 58 435,821,000
BT (= F = — 4 : 2,406,000%
L) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

IIEERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDHER (F)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #&5E0 ()
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
ERR% BARERERRE kg 45
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZE-CE -“T--% CZECCE -“I--F CZECCE -E--F CZEBIZE —I--E
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBK) (REER) (REBR) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HK$"000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
FEr AT FEr AT FEr FAT FEr AT
Other segment information: ~ EftAHER -
Netfairvalue gains/(losses) o~ X ENELFERE/
investment properties (BR) 3% - - - - (80) 500 (80) 500
Netfairvalue gains/(losses)on S AFEEERAE
financial assets atfair value LUBEELTE
through profitor loss g/ (B8) %% - - - - (1,569) 741 (1,569) 741
Amortisation of otherintangle £ EFAEZH
assets 3,248 3,246 213 - - - 3,461 3,246
Depreciation e 1352 1,031 466 2% - - 1,818 1321
Corporateand other unallocated PR EMANEFE
depreciation 2,939 1,244
4,757 2,565
Impaiment losses recognised/ ~ NEBEABER
(reversed) in the condensed B/ (BE)
consolidated statement of profit 2 i EEEF
orloss, net* 319 (163) (20) 345 - - 299 182
Capital expenditure™ BART™ 66 % 158 Py - - 24 18
Corporateand other unallocated 2R EHAHEEAR
capital expenditure™ Bx* 176 3
400 161

=

*%

Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment of HK$466,000 (2021: HKS172,000)
and the solutions and integration services segment of
HKS125,000 (2021: HK$346,000), respectively, and impairment
losses reversed in the condensed consolidated statement of
profit or loss attributable to the application services segment
of HKS147,000 (2021: HK$335,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HKS 145,000 (2021: HKS1,000),
respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment.

FRERE | MM RGEESRAT )0

*%

BIEREBHL A 185 & BT HER
B E RS 5 BE R AR AT &
RERK IR 57 55.2 0 (B 5 18 77
5l #466,000/8 0 (= F = —4F :

172,000% 7z) X 125,000,% 7T (=
F — —14F 1 346,000;% 7T) A R
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A AR5 57 88 R B R T 2 e B K AR
53802 (B 518 57 5l 73 147,000
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

(CONTINUED)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHTBER (E)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) FKESPREFZHA
Hong Kong and
other countries/regions Mainland China Total
BERREMER HE HE R A
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--f -—F--F ZE--E _—T--% B _—T-_-F
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REER) (REER) (REER) (REBR) (REER)
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
FEn FET FET FAT FAT FET
Segment revenue: FHBA

Sales to external customers HETIREP 102,097 99,454 26,485 25,816 128,582 125,270
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WABRTIARFATEN A

customers. HAE o

(ii) Non-current assets (i) FREBEE

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
ARA=t+H +TZH=1—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (F&®'Z)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Hong Kong BE 155,592 160,247
Mainland China R A 116,030 117,256
271,622 277,503

deferred tax assets.

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial assets and

LR RBEEERTIEE
EMEMET - & F ARG
K BEERBECHAEE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about a major customer

Revenue from transactions with an external customer
amounting to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2022, revenue from a major
customer of HK$33,889,000 (2021: HK$33,453,000) was
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the
application services segment and the solutions and integration
services segment.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

PIEERRMFE(E)

RETHEN (B)

(c)

—REIERFZEH

RKE—ZBINRBEPR G ZWALL
NEFBIKA10%3L A -

BHE-_Z-_—_F#XA=+HI1
HE kg Z2FEEREFZHA
/33,889,000 70 (=& = — 4 :
33,453,000/870) - B S E T K
BE2MRERRE DA MEE RS
ERERBEIBNETLRS °

WA - H At R W 5s F R
WADHTIT :

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRIEAEAR

2022 2021
—_EgE=-= —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RagEz)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers HREEZEFAHNHKA 127,576 124,267
Revenue from other sources kB H AR A
Gross rental income from investment HEMEZHSRARER
properties and interest income from EBEE 2R EWA
treasury investments 1,006 1,003
128,582 125,270

T FRERE | RBEREEERAT 3]



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

5. WA - HBW AR W35 (&)

REFEFEHHKA

(i) BHFUAEH

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRARR
ERR%E ERR% Mg
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REBER) (REBEER)
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FETT FET FET
For the six months ended BE-Z--§5xA
30 June 2022 =+ HIEAREAR
Segments ax:id
Types of goods or services EmRAEHEER
Sale of goods and provision of S8 S o AR B
software, GETS and BPO services BINEFEZR%E &
FBRIEIN AR 17,638 1,500 19,138
Provision of software implementation 32 £ &% {4 & 5 & #2 %8 iR
and related services, IT solutions % AEHEEAR
implementation and related REEIAAERS
services 31,508 24,748 56,256
Maintenance services RIS 29,988 22,194 52,182
Total revenue from contracts with REEFAHBIWA
customers 79,134 48,442 127,576
Geographical markets iy & T 45
Hong Kong and others BEARHEM 57,136 44,072 101,208
Mainland China AR A i 21,998 4,370 26,368
Total revenue from contracts with KRB & F & KIHI AU A
customers 79,134 48,442 127,576
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON ST
Goods and services transferredata M E—BEEES R K
point in time PR 7% 17,638 1,500 19,138
Services transferred over time R—BREERNEE RS 61,496 46,942 108,438
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPAHBRIA
customers 79,134 48,442 127,576
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HbW AR W= F5E (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEZEFAHNWEA (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DHFUAEH (F)

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
R R R
J& AR 7% SRR k)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REg&E=Z) (RegsEZ) (RegsEZ)

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FETT FET FET
For the six months ended BE-Z-—-§5xA
30 June 2021 =+BIEXEA
Segments an:id
Types of goods or services EmREER
Sale of goods and provision of $HE S o MR B
software, GETS and BPO services BNEFEZR% &
FBRIEIN IR TS 19,069 559 19,628
Provision of software implementation 2 & {4 & 5 & 12 78 iR
and related services, IT solutions % BB RS
implementation and related REEIAAERS
services 29,670 21,050 50,720
Maintenance services U PRI 30,321 23,598 53,919
Total revenue from contracts with RERBFAHMBILA
customers 79,060 45,207 124,267
Geographical markets #th & T 45
Hong Kong and others BEAERHEM 55,388 43,178 98,566
Mainland China AR i 23,672 2,029 25,701
Total revenue from contracts with RERFAHINBUA
customers 79,060 45,207 124,267
Timing of revenue recognition S ON S
Goods and services transferredata R E—FEHEES R
point in time AR 7% 19,069 559 19,628
Services transferred over time N — B N AR % 59,991 44,648 104,639
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPAHBRIA
customers 79,060 45,207 124,267
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -Hitlw AR WG HEE (E)
(CONTINUED)

REFEFEHNHKA (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) BHEML

(iij) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery, where payment in advance is normally required, and
the balance is generally due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of delivery.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60
days from the date of billing.

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group’s entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the respective contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payments in advance are normally required
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts
are in general for a period of one year.

5 B SR B 40 B T 40 A RHEL I
-

HEERRIEMRE S HITETF
B ZIRBERZER REINHIRE
BHEARER MREXFEE
B — A E BIEL A R A g
— BRI HEF30E60H K
/Hﬂo

TEH B & e R 1 AR 7%

JB 4 (EBE TR AR 745 1O B R 3 P -
MR — MR Ee R EE R B
30260 HWEF|H] -

WEHREAFREART FE R
Vil

JB #) B (ERE TR S AR 745 B0 B R K
AR — A& B HRE B HEs30
FAREH - -EFPFERERENSE
TEOHEE#ERTSE AN
S EBGR KN RO ENIURR
EFHBANTANE THHER
BREEROMERE

HEIRTE

JB #) B (ERE TR S AR 745 B0 B R K
B 5RE — AR A R 4R AR 7% A
ST MERBAEN MR —F
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. A - i A R W5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFEHHWA (&)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued) (i) BEHEF (&)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining RAA=ZTHEIEZHTRAOE
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as ERBETHE D REBET) RS
at 30 June are as follows: BIRRREWT
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RgEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FHET T
Amounts expected to be recognised as SREEREAREA
revenue:
Within one year —F R 51,355 64,440
After one year FEiE—F 1,172 1,098
52,527 65,538
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining EPRMEHRTEANEENRTZE
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised BeBERER - FEERAK
as revenue after one year relate to maintenance services, of A5 R B T 4F 1) 2 B 4 B AR
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within HeoMMBEMENEEZH NEY
four years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated EENRSEREBRASR —
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to FABBRMA - FHEFENS
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts BN B IS S BR I A R AE o

disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHIEAEA

2022 2021
—BC-CF —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZX) (RegsEz)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Other income and gains, net HM WA R K= T8
Bank interest income RITH B U A 1,531 1,110
Government subsidies* BT R B > 3,704 -
Value-added tax refund received L Bl BB R T 153 426
Dividend income from listed investments at Z A FELIERZ AR 2 £
fair value through profit or loss HERBEWA 194 249
Others HAitb 239 621
5,821 2,406
* The subsidies were granted under the Employment Support * i B BB R 7T IR T
Scheme by the Government of the Hong Kong Special ([ BB FI7TIE B BT ]) B 1R 5
Administrative Region (the "HKSAR Government”). There were no Eg by
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies, relating to the subsidies. KIEZE Y B (B, ZEZF E (o o
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B ERRME(E)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR B Al 2

AEE 7 BRBADE LM (GEA)
NoEIE

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEAR

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RETEZX) (RgEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFERA 17,563 18,547
Cost of services provided B AR SR A 40,648 40,120
Depreciation of property, plant and W BREREEITE
equipment* 466 730
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZITE 4,291 1,835
Amortisation of other intangible assets** WA s 3,461 3,246
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HJ' EWE - BELRREBEE 2
and equipment, net Wz FaE (1 (12)
Employee benefit expense”: BERAFEZ:
Wages, salaries and allowances and other IE - FHo 2 RAEMET
benefits 71,987 71,396
Equity-settled share-based payment P 1 45 B DARR 19 32 2
expense 306 430
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRIRFEFET 814 5K CEBEMH X
(defined contribution schemes) ETED) 3,549 3,602
75,842 75,428
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE BRI EF 299 182

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the period of
HKS59,000 (2021: HKS56,000) is included in “Cost of sales and services”
on the face of the condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**  Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HKS3,461,000
(2021: HK$3,246,000) is included in “Other expenses”on the face of the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software
products of HKS10,109,000 (2021: HK$10,968,000) and utility billing
system of HK$4,355,000 (2021: HKS4,155,000), respectively.

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$40,648,000 (2021: HK540,120,000)
classified under “Cost of services provided”above.

*  HAYE - BFEERELEZITE 59,000
BT (ZF = — 4 : 56,000, 7T) A
Botr & Ba X2 [15E KRR KA
/7\70

** E@Wﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁéﬁ?ﬁf%%iw@%i
T F — —4F : 3,246,000, T) A B
BRtR & 1B 7.2 [ BB S A »

N HEEEBHEREMHESR R LHE
fkl/ﬁ?%?u/bz A N
Bl A& 10,109,000& T (= F = —1F :
10,968,000,% 7T ) % 4,355,000 T (=&
T —4F 1 4,155,000,57T) °

L BRESBRRLAEIRARERA]Z

Z(5840,648,0008 0 (= F = — 4 :
40,120,000/87T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCE COST

Interest expense arising from discounted lease liabilities of an
amount of HK$195,000 (2021: HK$612,000) has been recognised
and classified under finance cost in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit and loss for the period ended 30 June 2022.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the period, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profit tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessment profits of
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessment profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

PIEERRMFE(E)

BB

BRHIRE B & E £ 2 F 8 M 195,000
BT (ZZ = —4F 6120008 70) R
BE - Z-_—_FXA=THILHBEZ
ARG ABRRNERADEAMK
BH -

Fri&®t

EBEFERIDBREAHMAREBE
A BETERTUE AT E165% (ZF
Z—F 1165%) (EHEE - AEE—
M B A B K AT & FI 1S 5 AR A
T B o %M B 2 R A B £ 2,000,000
7T (ZZ = —4 : 2,000,000 7T ) JE %
T M) 45442 8.25% (= F — —4E : 8.25%)
B MERERTUEFIRIZ16.5% (=
T —4F 1 16.5%) BiF o H b i@ fE R
REMzBHEADREAEECEER
FTERR el iRz EARRTE -

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXA=THILEAREA
2022 2021
—E-C —_EF-—
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEz)

HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Current - Hong Kong BN ER— &7

Charge for the period HiR X 3,927 1,137
Overprovision in prior periods BT ML REE (13) -

Current - Elsewhere BIVER — H b 30 (=
Charge for the period HR X 21 49
Overprovision in prior periods BT ML REEE - (195)
Deferred PR AE (779) (461)
Total tax charge for the period HAMIES N EE 3,156 530

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 25 July 2022, the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department issued an enquiry letter to

a subsidiary of the Company regarding the deductibility of certain
research and development expenditures. The subsidiary is in the
process of gathering the requested information and documents in
support of the deduction claim.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

8. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the
deduction claim and, therefore, the financial effect (including
the amount or timing thereof, if any) of the foregoing enquiry.
However, the directors believe that, subject to availability of the
required evidence, the subsidiary has valid grounds to support
the deductibility of those expenditures. Accordingly, no further
provision for Hong Kong profits tax is considered necessary at this
stage.

9. DIVIDENDS

(@) Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has
determined that an interim dividend of HK$0.065 (2021: an
interim dividend of HK$0.06) in cash per ordinary share should
be paid to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear in the Register of Members on Tuesday, 6 September
2022.

(b) Dividend attributable to the previous financial year approved
during the interim period.

Fri&®i (&)

ARABEERR REABRASFEH
At ERCERMEBMBETE (B
REBLBENER(E)) X'
1T AM EFRREESAHEEDN
BT ZMBRARERDEEH
RZ SR - At - BERLEFH]
FRNSVELE— S EE -

@<\

@ RPHHHELERE  E=2k
FAR-—_ZE-—FHANAE(EH
D)BHBREMZ AR B LB
&% 5 DATR & R A AP HARR 23 3% 0.065
B (ZEZ—F : IR 20.06
BIL) o

(o) 7R H AR A b 2 b 8 B BR 4R
BB e

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILAEA

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RegEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous B RN AR A
financial year, approved and paid during 8 (B B I 2 R EA AR
the interim period of HK$0.11 (2021:final B & E @K 0.11ET (=
dividend of HK$0.12) per ordinary share T 4 REIRE 012
P TT) 27,444 29,939
Less: Dividend for shares held under B IRBE AR BB RS
the Company’s restricted share RENETEIRAE 2 KD
award scheme Frig i 8 (221) (195)
27,223 29,744
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 247,184,909 (2021: 247,635,478) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed vesting of
all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

PIEERRMFE(E)

10. SRR EERBRREGERE

Bl

BREABASENBRES AR LR
B SR pEAE A HAR R | R AN B 817
T3 IR N AE 19 81 247,184,909 % (=&
— — 4 :247,635478%) it & - W 5t 5
AN R B R SIR M EEFEIE T AT
FRDIEH TR -

ERBERNNSBNRES AR LE
Hﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁl"ﬁﬁf’ﬁ}ﬁ?&ﬂﬁ% STEFR

BRMEFHEATEGRE
Kﬁf”ﬁﬁﬁﬁz%ﬁqaﬁﬁj&ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ
URBRERFBREARRRFL 2
BEEEERABERIIBRNDERIERS
B ARREREEFRBET2ER
B oniEF I EETE

SERNIFTRSENT

=
i%ﬁ$&1§&7§7§7ﬂﬁ? [SYNS]
P SR e AR e M ET B

El

£

12

Number of shares

il 4=
For the six months ended 30 June

BEAAZ=+tHLAEAR

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REgsEz)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st ESREARZFFTAITAL
in issue during the period used in the basic ?if?ﬁjetn AR NAE T E
earnings per share calculation 247,184,909 247,635,478
Effect of dilution — weighted average number #5852 — LB HIRE L
of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIR AN 2 R B BRI A% 1) 228
Company’s restricted share award FEIERE 2 BRHIRG
scheme 933,382 1,108,465
Number of shares used in the diluted earnings =2 & % # 5% Z 7 F7 A I 15
per share calculation L gE! 248,118,291 248,743,943
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

M. YE BERRE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (& &E=Z)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net carrying amount, at 1 January R—A—8  EEFE 1,212 1,987
Additions NE 400 641
Disposals HE - ?3)
Depreciation provided during the period/year £,/ R IT & E & (466) (1,413)
Exchange realignment ME W S (9) -
Net carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December W7<B=+H, +=A
=+—H " REFE 1,137 1,212
12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REY=
2022 2021
-2 —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (feEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZKAEE 66,790 66,290
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments RNEEFHE 2 W= (EE)
R (80) 500
Carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December WARA=+8,/+=A
=+—BZEREME 66,710 66,790
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

13. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its
operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

13. HE
AEEEBEEA

AEEFEENEETEANSEYR
MEEAK - WEHE—ROBEHR—
E=F—RME  AREWELKHE
EEEERMOMTAEEUIIAL -

(a) EAEEZE

B/ FANEEERREENK

the movements during the period/year are as follows: HERESHHT :
Properties
Y/
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (& E=Z)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
As at 1 January mn—H—H 18,142 4,983
Additions NE 2,668 17,034
Remeasurement on lease modifications FlEEE 2 BHE (463) 1,720
Depreciation charge e (4,291) (6,125)
Exchange realignment TE 5 % (179) 530
As at 30 June/31 December WRANA=+8

+=—A=+—H 15,877 18,142
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

13. LEASES (CONTINUED)

13. 8 (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAHEA (F)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements B/ #ANHEEENEEERE
during the period/year are as follows: g -
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 18,248 7,038
New leases HE 2,668 17,034
Remeasurement on lease modifications FlEEE 2 B#F S (463) 1,146
Accretion of interest recognised during 8RN FER R BIE K
the period/year 195 245
Payments (NES (4,208) (7,677)
Exchange realignment TE W 8% (181) 462
Carrying amount at 30 June/ WARA=Z+8/
31 December TZA=+—RHZKHEE 16,259 18,248
Analysed into: ST :
Current portion mENER 8,320 7,923
Non-current portion EMBNAL D 7,939 10,325

(c)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

(c) BERAEEMMBEERHNS T -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=+tHLAEAR

2022 2021

—=E-= —E-—F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEEZ) (CRisEZ)

HKs’000 HKS000

FET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEZFE 195 612
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1 A& E 2 T & 4,291 1,835
Expenses relating to short-term leases FHAEHEEZHAY 418 342
Total amount recognised in profitor loss MBS HERE & 58 4,904 2,789
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) consisting of
one (2021: one) commercial property in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and one (2021: one) industrial property in Hong
Kong under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the period was HK$1,006,000 (2021:
HK$1,003,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

PIEERRMFE(E)

13. 8 (&)

REBMERHAA

AEERBLEEHELTHE  BEKE
M (MsE12) B BEURFPEA
REMH ([FEHEDH—E(ZZE=—4:
—E)ERAYENMURESH—E (=
To—F: ) ITERAYME-HEN
B —MERBRPINERIEZES - K
SERHRN#ERAES A A 1,006,000
BT (ZZF = —4F :1,003,000/87C) °

RBEEMEEER  ARERERH
MPAIZZ FAIBUBH G EHER K
KEAR M 2 REER RERE T T

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—_EgE-= —E-—F

ANB=+H +=-A=+—8

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REERZ) (L'|iz)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FHEIT

Within one year —FR 504 1,224
After one year but within two years —FRERMEA 152 -
656 1,224

14. GOODWILL 14. &
(Unaudited)
(REER)
HK$000
FET
30 June 2022 —E--FXAZ=+H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2022 R-EBE-_—_F—AF—BAk=_F-—
and 30 June 2022 NA=ZtTBERAREEE 135,001
(Audited)
(feFZz)
HKSs'000
FET
31 December 2021 —EB--+=ZA=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2021 R-ZE_—F—A—ARZZT=-—%F
and 31 December 2021 TZA=t+—BRAKREEEAE 135,001
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B ERRME(E)

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. Htt B EE

Deferred
development Customer
costs relationships Software Total
i1
RN EFH% g4 BE
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
30 June 2022 “ZE--§XA=TH
Costat 1January 2022, net of accumulated R ZF-—F—A—HZHA
amortisation and impairment Nk 2 EERRE 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
Amortisation provided during the period AEAR ARG (213) (827) (2,421) (3,461)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFXA=1H 32,992 3,183 16,722 52,897
At 30 June 2022: RZEZ_FRA=TH:
Cost A 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 5t 5 T Bl (& (13,239) (11,584) (29,306) (54,129)
Net carrying amount RHTE 32,992 3,183 16,722 52,897
Deferred
development Customer
costs*  relationships Software Total
RERA*  EPBIE s ok
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(BER) (L&) (B&ER) (8&=%)
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKs 000
FET FHET FET FET
31 December 2021 —-F+ZA=1+-H
Costat 1January 2021, net of accumulated ~ A=F=—F—fF—HZHA -
amortisation and impairment Mir REtEHERAE 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
Additions WE 1,894 - - 1,894
Amortisation provided during the year AEREHEE - (1,656) (4,836) (6,492)
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+-A=+—-H 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
At31December 2021and 1 January 2022: HR=E-—FF+-A=+—HR
RZFZZfF-f—-R:
Cost A 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
Accumulated amortisation and impairment £ 58 85} Rl B (13,026) (10,757) (26,885) (50,668)
Net carrying amount REFE 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
* In the prior year, additions of deferred development costs of * B FE - FEAL KR RNFE

HKS 1,894,000 were from internal development. 1,894,000, 7T 73 5 £ A S5 FT % -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

PIEERRMFE(E)

16. B E 5 IR

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
RA=tH +tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (Fe &%)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 41,052 48,778
Impairment RE (3,437) (3,177
37,615 45,601

The Group’s trading terms with its customers vary from contract to
contract or depending on the specific arrangements with individual
customers, and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and
on credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 60 days, except for certain projects with
longer implementation schedules or for major or specific customers,
where the period may be extended. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

REBZRXSEFAREEREG LA
THENBEFPZHRZHEME A&
BEEENR  BANRERE - 3%
EUREFARETRIZEFPME
BEEEH MR TZR60K - HMA
FTHEEIHER SIIHEITBRETE
BFE AEREEH - AEE-HES
IHEREEZEREZRN BE
BT HEMOARELES AEE
TERNHEERREIRIEHREFEL
A EFE R EH EMEEESEE -
FE UL 5 BR AL T FILB. -

RBEHEEER  EBKE S ERIE
BEOBIWANBEREBHE ZRED
W

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
—EgE-= —E-—

AA=t+H +TZH=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&&= =Z)

HKs$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within 1 month —fEARA 23,003 26,626
1 to 3 months —E={EA 4,328 13,269
4 to 6 months A ENS 6,471 3,740
Over 6 months NMEA L E 3,813 1,966
37,615 45,601
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B ERRME(E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16. FEWE 5 IR (&)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade JEWE 5 R 2 BB R EBEEEH N T

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZX) (fe&EZz)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
At beginning of period/year HER ] 3,177 3,861
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment),  JEl B &518, (# BIRE) 558
net 299 (123)
Amount written off as uncollectible 58 A R U B 58 - (595)
Exchange realignment ME W, B (39) 34
At end of period/year AER R 3,437 3,177
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using REmE A ERAREERETRE
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision oA LETEREEESBE - BEXD
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the ERBHAMET ZitERBEA
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable EMELERENREAHAISNEH
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, B EIE AR S B R R A OB R
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. FEARNEERASEER -
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TR AEEFAREEETED
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: JEWE SRR EERRER
At 30 June 2022 R-B-ZZHXA=+H
Past due
B
Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
FERE —1{& -z =f@A
W HE BN A AR =f@A BLE @t
Expected credit lossrate ~ TBHAfE E BB R 100% 0.02% 0.08% 0.17% 3.95% 8.37%
Gross carryingamount R EI4A(H
(HK$'000) (FHTT) 3112 22,680 3,883 3,499 7,878 41,052
Expected credit losses EHEERRE
(HK$'000) (FET) 3,112 5 3 6 3N 3,437
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2021

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

16. EWE Z R (&)
R—_E-_—F+=-_A=+—H

Past due
oE
Credit-
impaired Less than Tto3 Over3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
FERE —1{& - =1&A
e R IE ENEA AR =R AL st
Expected credit lossrate ~ TAEZ EEE R 100% 0.03% 0.07% 0.19% 5.45% 6.51%
Gross carryingamount  FREIB(E
(HK$'000) (FAT) 2,958 30,650 7,303 4,255 3,612 48,778
Expected credit losses EHEEERE
(HK$'000) (FAT) 2,958 9 5 8 197 3177

17. CONTRACT ASSETS

17. BHEE

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
NA=+H +=—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (& EZ)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FiET
Contract assets arising from: BRNEERBUATNEIE:
Sale of goods and provision of software, HEE M MEEEY - BN
GETS and BPO services BETFESIRELERRIE
SRR %5 75 222
Provision of software implementation RESHEELAERTS - &
and related services, IT solutions AR ERA S RE MR
implementation and related services ki 19,790 20,201
Maintenance services HEERTE 16,983 5,205
36,848 25,628

Contract assets are mainly initially recognised for revenue earned
from the provision of software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services as the receipt of
consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets
during the six months ended 30 June 2022 was mainly due to an
increase in the provision of maintenance services near the end of
the period.

—To_FRBRE | RBRREEERRR 4/

HAREMKBR T FEANFATRIES
HEE  BESEFEELEERE - &
B EA T RE MABRBE TGS
WAVIZHERBEHNEE - SIREHE
HERERMBBERE  EMEHER@®AR
REBEEBRBITAGHNEETR
FEREWASE THREHNEFPKA
MEHRER ZECRREBENEE
NEeHmEETHEETRWESER -
HE-_ZT-—_FA=+HIL~@AR
MEHNEEENDEZERRERIER
PRt 42 AR A 12 INFTEL -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is

17. BHNEE (&)

BHBENTARMK S EERENT

as follows:
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-F —ET-—F
RA=+tH +tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE®) (&%)
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 36,848 25,628

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18. BAVERBEREARZHBE

PROFIT OR LOSS =3

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E-CF T —F

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (TEiz)

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Debt investment, at fair value BAFEFEZEBHRE 2,100 2,100
Listed equity investments, at fair value BATEFE ETRAERE 5,977 7,546
8,077 9,646
Portion classified as current assets DIEARDEEIS (5,977) (7,546)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEERIERBEEZ D 2,100 2,100

The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The debt investment was mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not

solely payments of principal and interest.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s listed equity investments with a
carrying value of approximately HK$5,977,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$7,546,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

EtTRARERNBREEEMED
RENTELRBRaARIMBEE -

BEHRETRHMEL D BARAFE
REBSARIHBHEE  HEASQR
EREBVWIFEIININASRFE -

RZE-_—_FXNA=+8 XxEEZ I
A% AN 4% & BR 1 {8 49 7% 5,977,000% 7T
—ZE-—F+-HA=+—H 7,546,000
BT B ABSE TSR —MERTT
BhE EIRIR o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

19. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

19. ENEZ IR - HMENRE

ACCRUALS Rt RIA

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

ANAB=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REERZ) (TEiz)

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade payables FETE B RRR 12,357 11,257
Other payables H b e~ IR 28,577 27,327
Accruals FEET R IE 18,049 25,134
58,983 63,718
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARSEEILS (58,944) (63,718)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DERIEREBEEI D 39 -

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEHREEER BN E S ERNR
HRBZREDTMT

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—=E_-C —E-—F

ANA=+H +Z-A=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REERZ) (%)

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@AR 10,132 8,417
1 to 3 months —Z==1@A 1,048 2,155
4 to 6 months rmZ <@ A 976 429
Over 6 months NEA B E 201 256
12,357 11,257

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 30-day terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BHEEFBEOT
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—g== e
NA=t+H tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Ez)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Advances received from customers B E 250
Sale of goods and provision of software, HEEmMEHEN BUTE
GETS and BPO services FE 5 RS R EFREIN
it 1,925 2,715
Provision of software implementation RERHERLIEERTS - &
and related services, IT solutions SRR ARR T R E M &R
implementation and related services el 23,330 24,384
Maintenance services #EE RS 27,272 28,973
52,527 56,072
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARSEEILS (51,355) (54,222)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DERIERBDEBE D 1,172 1,850

The majority of the contract liabilities mainly include advances
received to render software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services, and maintenance
services. The decrease in contract liabilities during the six months
ended 30 June 2022 was mainly due to the decrease in advances
received from customers in relation to the provision of maintenance

services at the end of the period.

FOEZEEN
EARBEAMAE

LA PR o

AHBraHNaBETFEZEEREHREG
ERBERYE &R
B e S A8 BA IR 75 DA % 4 7 AR 755 BT U ER
cHEZTZ-_FA=TH
HNeBERLSETZHRNE
REBARBEEERG D WELBRK

AR SCBORTT =
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B RSIRR ML (AF)
21. DEFERRED TAX 21. BB A
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the H/ FR BEERBEEBEZE
period/year are as follows: EF N
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE
Temporary
differences
arising from
contract
liabilities
REEHNEE
ZERELE
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
HKs$’000
FETT
At 1 January 2022 WZ_ZE-_—_F—H—H 2,061
Deferred tax charged to the condensed consolidated HAMBR S ARG ERRZ
statement of profit or loss during the period EEFRIR (27)
Exchange realignment M 58 B (85)
Gross deferred tax assets at 30 June 2022 RZEZZFARAA=THELERIE
BEER 1,949
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluation of development acquisitionof ~ Withholding
properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
Wi
BEEX WERRZ
NEER HRRA ATERE bk o
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBK) (REBR) (REER)

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT

At 1 January 2022 W-2--£-f-H
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the Bk GIA) BRERAEE
condensed consolidated statement of profit & Z BB
or loss during the period
Exchange realignment [ 5 AR

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 2022
B REREESR

T CFRBERE | MM EsEEARAR 5

RZE-—FxA=1H

386 5,478 5,564 774 12,202
(20) (35) (754) 3 (806)

. - - 8) (8)
366 5,443 4,810 769 11,388




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

21. JRAERL IR (5F)

Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE
Losses
available for Temporary
offsetting differences
against arising from
future taxable contract
profits liabilities Total
Al
WIHARKER KREESHEE
7504 A ) B 18 L ERER LG
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (&%) (&%)
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZFEZ—F—H—H 824 2,320 3,144
Deferred tax charged to the FAKREGEERRZ
consolidated statement of profit & JE % 18
or loss during the year (824) (338) (1,162)
Exchange realignment PE W - 79 79
Gross deferred tax assets at RZEZ—F+=H
31 December 2021 —+—RELERIEE
EEHE - 2,061 2,061
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluationof ~ development  acquisitionof ~ Withholding
properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
e
Bt MWERAZ
nEE RERE  ATERE B &%
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(m&7) (&&E7) (&&E7) (&E7) (&%)
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FAT FET
At 1 January 2021 RmZ2-—F-HA—H 386 5,166 7,071 764 13,387
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRR/ GIARABERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss EERE
during the year - 3 (1,507) 5 (1,190)
Exchange realignment fiE 5 R - - - 5 5
Gross deferred tax liabilities at WZEZ-F+-A=+—-H
31 December 2021 BREREEEEE 386 5478 5,564 774 12,202
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22.

23.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2021: HK$31,700,000), of which
HK$20,787,000 (31 December 2021: HK$21,116,000) was utilised as
at 30 June 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

22.

23.

PIEERRMFE(E)

HRERE
REEMMBEE R - BRAMBHRER
RIFIH BB Z AR EMT -

RATEHANEBAE 2 ETALM
MEBBITERZBHRE ERRA
=T R1TIR M A #31,700,00078 7T (—
T - —%+=HF=+—H : 31,700,000
B IT) ZEIR - B 20,787,000 7T (=
T —F+=ZH=4+—H :21,116,000
BT ER_ZE__FXNA=1tHHH -

BEALXRS

Bt S B mREMBEAFAZZS
RHRERIN AEERHAN S HELT
THEEALERS
AEETEEEABZMEOT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRIEAEAR

2022 2021

—E-= —FE=-—
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RigEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FiET
Short-term employee benefits REEERT 9,072 8,464
Equity-settled share-based payment expense % 1& 4% & LARS {5 S 1~ 5 2 180 272
Post-employment benefits BERL 2B A 81 81

Total compensation paid to key management X BEIE A 8 2 B¢

personnel BE 9,333 8,817

These included continuing connected transactions exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the Main
Board Listing Rules.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

24. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 24, R TEAEATFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, current
portion of deposits and other receivables, trade payables, current
portion of other payables and financial liabilities included in accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values for certain financial instruments:

The fair values of the non-current deposits and other payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms. In the opinion
of the directors, the fair values of these financial instruments
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investment is based on available market prices.

Y

RBEHHEEER  AEEVBEE
kafEzREERE A HESEMMEE -

ERECHERSRERRTEE
EEMRITER  BREZENX R

MoZBREREMEYWHIE  EBHE
SRR RB AR D 2 B A FE AT IR I
AFARFRBEZHEBEzAFER
HEmMERS TEHRZFIAZ
FHARERTHENFELTEKX -

WHEERBEZAFEDNRABER
SHZERENRSGZARGITAS
BEASR MRG0 BR L ERISIERR °
T AERBRE ARG E THS
TARFE:

FrRBpREMEBEMNFBENRFE
TERBREMENELGIROTA
HEMR S REMAME EFERA
ZEVH T AN FHERAEREEMES °

FHRARBERE S ATFEDRS
SSRE BT -

AFANEBREZEMEREZF AT
BNETSERSE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

24. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 24. B TAAFERAFESR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Fair value hierarchy AFEERES
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRERAEEMBITAZ A FEG
of the Group’s financial instruments: SERERE
Assets measured at fair value: BAVHEFEZEE
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZEZ—FXA=+H

Fair value measurement using
AFERANTEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BB EATEE EATTEE

TEHRE BABE BAHE
(%118) ($218) (%38) BE
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (RE8%K) (REER)  (REER

HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value through ~ R AFEZLBHEARZ
profit or loss: RBEE -
Listed equity investments EIRAERE 5,977 - - 5,977
Debt investment EBRE - 2,100 - 2,100
5,977 2,100 - 8,077

ST EhERE | RBEREEERAT 55



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERR M (48)
24. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 24 B ITAAFERRAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) RiE (&
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT ESHERE (H)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) RAFEFEZEE ()
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AFERANTET:E
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

R BEAUER BATMUEER
M5 H{E BAHE BARE

(B1E) (%28) (£3E) Fk
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (8% %) (EER%) (&%)
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000

TFiET FET TF/ET TFET

Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZAFELEBH AR 2

profit or loss: RBEE

Listed equity investments EIRAEE 7,546 - - 7,546

Debt investment EfEE - 2,100 - 2,100

7,546 2,100 - 9,646
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAVEFEZEE:
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair AEBR_Z-__FXA=Z+HBKZ=
value as at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021. T F+_A=t+—BUELAE
NEEFEZHBEE -

During the period ended 30 June 2022, there were no transfers BHE-ZT-—_FA=THILH8H"
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no THBEERMBREMS F H1/EH
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial F2E2HBMBEATEFEER  HE
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). ANFEFEEARBLEEIE (B2

EZ-—F+-_f=+—HIFE E)-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include lease liabilities,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals,
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates

relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits
with floating interest rates.

“T SRR | M ERsEEERAR 5/

PIEERRMFE(E)

25. IKEREEEEREEK

AEEZIZMKTABRKEHEERE
EEMRTEFIANRRELEFRRE
EE-UWEVWBIAZFEREDAR
AEBZEBRE AEEAEMS
BEWHEERARE  NEKE SRR
Eé&ﬁ@f%ﬁﬁ e E 5 R
SRl RN R O N i S P )
FEL&EQiEW% N b
BE HEVHEENABEIEZAR
BEEERESL -

KEIWWIﬂF$ZIEH G 7% A

HNERRR - EERR - BRAE
ﬁﬂﬁ RBETRER BEEEEH
I R &N ATt E IR % TR Ut L
ZHR e

M@
AEBREMSHNEZEGHMAT 2R

BT ERAEERFHNRITRRTE
MEFB2RE RIRITFERER -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEMEERERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on

floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

AR Eb ()

T%%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ\ﬁﬂ """"" BERTEL
BRT  NEREZEBEBAGEN CERF

BN ERRITERRBITESAZZE)

HRXRGPAIGEHIRE B c BREIZE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

HEhgm,/ Bk 5 A 35
(R4) &, (hd)

(Unaudited)
(RETEZ)
HKS'000
FET

As at 30 June 2022 R-ZE-ZFXA=+1+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (188)
United States dollar EIv (25) (436)
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TARK] (25) (124)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 188
United States dollar ETT 25 436
RMB AR 25 124
As at 30 June 2021 RZZE-Z—FA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (156)
United States dollar ETT (25) (463)
RMB AR (25) (136)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 156
United States dollar ETT 25 463
RMB AR 25 136

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

BROR B IS - HA KRB m B BT
OFEZ

5 8 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2022



25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’

functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

and liabilities).

PIEERRMFE(E)

25. B EREREBFERBEEK (&)

S ELBR

AEEEHXZEERR - WERE

ERENEEFENERZEMLYES
BIANEERBRZARREEZ
PR KBS

TRBIEFARBEBASTE Y
BERT  AEEBRBREHELEEH 2
RN (AEBEERABEATE
AR HARBEETEAREH 2 &
RXIZE o

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ERLEH RR B A0 28 A
(TE&) i/ CGRD)
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)
% HKS000
FET
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZEBE--FxXA=1+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB T A AREEZE 5 (430)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T i, A R EEFHE (5) 430
As at 30 June 2021 RZEZ—FH=1TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HARKEEE 5 (541)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T %, A REEFHE (5) 541
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained PR OR B8 K A - B A S B s L AT
profits. A& o
Credit risk SRR
The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised AEEFTZHRAREERITZE=

and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on

an ongoing basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and period/year-end
staging classification as at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

25. B EREREBEFERBEEK (&)

FERRE (&)
REERRRAFRITEER

TREFENAKEEEERRNGEER
Bxk&aFERR  TEUEBHER
REE(BRIEATETREBSERARE
NEBERTRSEMER) RR=F
ZZHFRNRAZTRARZEZ—F+=
A=+—BH " FRAEEERSE-
25N BRMEEENKREZE -

As at 30 June 2022 R-BZZFAF=1H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f8A
RHEEER PHRHEEESR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-RR E-RR EZRE L A% BE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (RBER) (RBER) (REER) (REER)
HKS$’000 HKs000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* e E 5 R F - - - 41,052 41,052
Contract assets* AREE: - - - 36,848 36,848
Deposits and other receivables 24 & K ft JE Ut 5008
- Normal** —IEE* 7,344 - - - 7,344
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER
- Not yet past due — MR8 1,351 - - - 1,351
Cashand cashequivalents ~ BHENERBELEE
- Not yet past due — W ARE 285,643 - - - 285,643
294,338 - - 77,900 372,238

60
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

25. B EREREBFERBEEK (&)

FERRE (&)

REEBRRAFRITEREER ()

As at 31 December 2021 R-ZEFEZ—F+=-H=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZfEA
BHEEEAR PHEHEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach TotaI
—FE & —EE o B 7E ot
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audlted)
(8ER) (8ER) (BER) (&ER) (8ER)
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FHET FHET TET FET FET
Trade receivables* B E 5 R - - - 48,778 48,778
Contract assets* BHEE" - - - 25,628 25,628
Deposits and other receivables 14 [ E it f& U 2008
- Normal** —IEE* 4174 - - - 4174
Pledged bank deposits EERRRITER
- Not yet past due — WA 1,193 - - - 1,193
Cashand cashequivalents  BRERERRBRLEE
- Not yet past due — WA 298,397 - - - 298,397
303,764 - - 74,406 378,170

* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 16 and 17 to the financial
statements, respectively.

*%

The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered

to be “normal”when they are not past due and there is no information
indlicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
(note 18) as at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021. The Group’s
listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

25. B EREREBEFERBEEK (&)

PR A fE % B

kﬁﬁﬁﬂMmhmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
MNEBFBEZECERRAER A
FERRZ B - AEEZ A ERE
BRRE_FT__FRNA=ZTARZ
T _—Ft+_A=+—ABERAYF
E%E EARZ B EE-ETRA
K& (MfiE18) 2 AR IR AR E - NE
Bz EMRAIRERNE BB LT
R EHEEERRTISRENE -

TRESERALERB @S TR
ERTRAGERMBRETERN  AH

B (E AR AEE TR ARE
8545 RS A 2 A TES BT 10%

B MHEAEE 2 BRARE -

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax

BAEKREZ RR Bt A 28

IREME W CRD)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEZ) (REEZ)

HKS’000 HK$’000

FET FET
As at 30 June 2022 RZB-ZZHFXA=t+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: ERBLEMZBRARE

— financial assets at fair value through —EBAFELERARZ
profit or loss HBEE 5,977 598
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEBEEREERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued)

R A& 1% JEL B (48)
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)
of equity in profit
investments before tax

BAREZ B 35 A A
fRmEE  Em OB

(Audited) (Audited)
(FeFEZ) (FeEZ)
HKS'000 HKS000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 R-EB-—F+=-A=+—H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEBLMZBRAKRE
— financial assets at fair value through —EBAFELEZARZ
profit or loss 7,546 755
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRORB&E RO - WA S B S ET
profits. A2 o
Liquidity risk REBESER

The Group's objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and
bank deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior

management on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEMEERERKE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) REELER (F)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end REEHELEER XEERESD
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted RTIRA AR E M B A EE BB
payments, is as follows: S
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZZBZZHXA=+1H
Lessthan  3tolessthan 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=z
REXEE  OR=ER  TZEAR -Z1f B

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REER) (REEH) (REER) (RBER)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade payables ENEHER 10,848 542 967 - 12,357
Other payables AR5 - 28,538 - 39 28,577
Lease liabilities HERR - 1,520 7,141 8,077 16,738
Financial liabilities included in accruals 5 AJEHFUE 2 BT & - 7,624 - - 7,624
Guarantees given to banks for RAEEARIETAN
performance bonds/guarantees FERORE /BRTA
issued in relation to certain RITRE 2 R
contracts undertaken by the Group 20,787 - - - 20,787
31,635 38,224 8,108 8,116 86,083
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PIEERRMFE(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEBEEREERKE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) REE LR (F)
As at 31 December 2021 RN-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H
Less than 3to less than Tt05
On demand 3months 12 months years Total
-z
RExEE  OR=@R  +ZEAR —2R%F ek
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(8%5%) (B%E%) (BE7) (8% %) (BERZ)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$'000
TAT TET TET TET TET
Trade payables ERESER 10439 532 286 - 11,257
Other payables EffENTA - 27377 - - 27327
Lease liabilities HERR - 1573 6,501 10,443 18517
Financial liabilities included in accruals 5 A[ESHFE 2 BT & - 8,250 - - 8,250
Guarantees given to banks for RAREREZETEH
performance bonds/guarantees FERORE/BRAOA
issued in relation to certain ROREZER
contracts undertaken by the Group 21,116 - - - 21,116
31,555 37,682 6,787 10,443 86,467
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25.

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2022 and year ended 31 December 2021.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 August 2022.

25. B EREREBEFERBEEK (&)

26.

EXEHE

AEBEAERZTEZEBNZRRE
AEBRBERLEZENLHTRESE
REE AXFHEEB R BBRRE K
RAEE -

AREBBECEM D 2B LARE
EzEBEE THEELEEER
HEERIELAZ - AEBATUBAA
BEBRREZRE MREEESE
EREEITHR - VRIS AR E AN o
NEBBABTEMINTIEINZ E AR
HE - BE-_Z-_—_F<xA=1+H1
HEERBEE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFERN AEBZEAEREEEZ -
BERSRIZ P o

RERE 2 BN A BERAE s A 0 4K o

it o 2 B B R R

greR -_ET-_—_FN\A+N\BH#E
KI5 i )3 R HREA TS 3R % o
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Other Information

Higx

EERNROREBRO 2EZR LR

RZZBEZZFANA=+H  FZFFREAAR

MEEB LR (ExRFE %&Hﬁiﬂlﬂﬁm
FNEFEED]]) EXVER) 2 A K& AR R (D
PR AR RIEREES M E GG 352
BHREFBEZELMP LSRR E LD

BOTANEFETESXINRETASRTT

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

PIE-RAN/NETPYE

ERREBRZHR

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE  SoRERME

BERH T2 R

HPDX

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company'’s

beneficially controlled issued

Note owned corporation Total share capital

EARRT

B ZB EB®ITRA

Name of director BEEnR BtaF BEnEEE SEHEAF wy ERal
Ng Cheung Shing REB (@) 5,300,000 114,614,000 119,914,000 48.07
Cheung Wai Lam SRAE TR 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.40
Leung King San, Sunny 2 £ 3 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 0.41
Ng Kwok Keung R E 58 374,000 - 374,000 0.15
7,704,000 114,614,000 122,318,000 49.03
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

%ﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁi*&ﬁ&iﬁé%
IIE

R—BHEBEERD Z2H A :

Percentage
Number of shares of the
KiB#E associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Classof  beneficially controlled issued share
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation capital
LEREL
E# EB EBTRA
EEpg HBEEER AN E 2 ER R 1 %8 51 Biffs XEELT Aot
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And ~ Company’s subsidiary Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
SR Technologies ~ AR ZHIBAF deferred (note P[7E (b)) TEA
International EREREL
Limited

R RS BRRA
Notes:

(@) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

GEX

(@) CS.(BVI) Limited 2 2 &M B R RIBHRIIEA
PN aE] (MB35 8 114,614,000 it {5 ° =
EBEABRENCS. (BVI) Limited 7 REAE
FITE ST =0 7 — A 2R
ifl C.S. (BVI) Limited Rl B R EH R R KE L
TEEHITE=ZD 2 — A LI -
It BIBEEFRBEKRN  RRBILAERES
BRNEHMEE ARG HE RS -

(b) % 3,250,000 & fEI% EREIRIEAX(D R IBHHITAE ©

BREXEREEN RZT=_=F A=1+AH"
BEEENAQAHEEAERERZ R
AR R B - BEREREZ MEERD
FI2FA T HRBLTETAES
ETEFRXHNRETARTHNE AR A
NPz Em SRR o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded
Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded
Shares will then be transferred to these employees and directors upon
vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award
Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as
notified to them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other incentive or
share option schemes and under the Award Scheme must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2021.
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Other Information (continued)
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRI EB S (F)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the FNERHFIEE T - —F XA =+H - HH
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30 W% 2B EITE 2RI D < BB R E&F -
June 2022.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

AEREBROUE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 30 June Vesting period of ~ fair value
of participant 2022  theperiod  theperiod  theperiod 2022 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
IS i
SRENE ZBIZE #in #ir B —E-zf SR
B &R -A-H BB 2HE gl ~A=TH RLRBAY KBROBES THLTE
HKS
AT
Directors
Bz
Ng Cheung Shing 100,000 - (50,000) - 50,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
REB e SIN:3 30 April 2023
LATHEE ZE-NEEA=tBZE
ZECCEMA=TH
Ng Cheung Shing - 150,000 - - 150,000 6 June 2022 30June 2023 to 224
REB “E-CF 30 June 2025
ANARAE ZEZZFXAZTHEZE
ZECRERACTH
Cheung Wai Lam 100,000 - (50,000) - 50,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RER SN2 30 April 2023
LATHEE ZE-NEWA=tBEZE
ZEZ=FMA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung 100,000 - (50,000) - 50,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RE% N3 30 April 2023
LATEE ZE-NEmA=tEZE
ZEC=FMA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung - 150,000 - - 150,000 6 June 2022 30June 2023 to 224
RE% —EICF 30 June 2025
NEAE ZE-ZFRAZTHE
ZECRFRAZTH
Sub-total
et 300,000 300000 (150,000) - 450,000
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Other Information (continued)

HbER (&)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BIRFIIR 0 R B8 (F)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AEBEBRHY A
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 30 June Vesting period of ~ fair value
of participant 2022  theperiod  theperiod  the period 2022 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
R R
SRERS t. et il il Br —B-cF BhRing
FrR R -A-H BB EER Bk ~A=TA RERBAS RBROSEA PHULVE
HKS
V:vm
Other employees
AtbfES
Inaggregate 530,000 - (240,000) (65,000) 225,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
aif “E-N\F 30 April 2023
RAtHE ZE-AEMA=tEE
“T-ZEMA=TA
Inaggregate 252,000 - (84,000) - 168,000 4July 2019 30 June 2020 to an
aif “E-NE 30 June 2024
tAlEE ZZ-ZERA=THE
“T-mERA=TH
Inaggregate - 870,000 - - 870,000 6 June 2022 30 June 2023 to 2.24
aif Sk 30 June 2025
/\H/\E‘ —7— E/\ﬂ -‘—El:t
“TCRERAZTH
Sub-total
N 782,000 870,000 (324,000) (65,000) 1,263,000
Total
Bt 1,082,000 1,170,000 (474,000) (65,000) 1,713,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERPERSONS’ IFERREHMA L (A FERATE
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVEOFTHE EZRIEFTHRAE) RKROEHEEBR
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING 72

SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, the following interests of more than 5% of theissued RZ-ZT - —F XA =+H L TALRAFA
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the R8N EIRIEBH L EIEHIE 336 1558 T
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to 17 & & # % & 52 i MG A A 7 2 B 17 A

section 336 of the SFO: NBERRAES% DA E 2 fEs
Long positions: #E:
Percentage
of the
Number of Company's Number
Capacity and nature ordinary  issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company  Notes of interest shares held capital  options held
EADT
BRITKRAE s
ADNERRER BB Wit BoRERUE FEEEREE Bolk  BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@)  Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BEHHRARAR BERERER
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@)  Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 45.94 -

ERZIEH R A

Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 -
BERERER
Hutchison International Limited (“"HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -

gk ING]

Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“"HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEBBBARIR(ME] g ek VNC]
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH”) ~ (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RICEERERAR(RE]D BRZEHI DA
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") ~ (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINMCZEERRAR([RA]) FEBRXEHRA]
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.73 -
FFHX BHERERER
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,564,665 223 -
HERERER
() Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 3.77 -

g ek PNG]
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b)  PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 396,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the period was approximately HK$988,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during
the reporting period except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. As disclosed in the announcement
dated 30 December 2019, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been re-designated
from an executive director of the Company and the CEO to an executive
director effective 1 January 2020.

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William has been appointed as the deputy CEO of the
Group with effect from 1 August 2018. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on
certain business operations and administrative functions of the Group,
assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure
they are implemented successfully. With the present board structure
and scope of business, the Board considers that there is no imminent
need to appoint a CEO. However, the Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure and will
consider whether any changes, including the appointment of a CEO, are
necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules
and other regulations. This framework was built around a structure
that enables the Board and the management to discharge their risk
management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation as
well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining
risk appetite in accordance with the Group's business strategies and
objectives, formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those
strategies, and establishing procedures and limits for the approval,
control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the
highest level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
Members included three executive directors and one independent
non-executive director. The Risk Management Committee had direct
involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite, and determined
the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to
its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and
regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures
that the management adopted in executing its business functions.
The Risk Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk
management framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks
are performed according to established policies and with appropriate
resources.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 have not been audited, but the Audit
Committee has discussed with the management of the Company and the
external auditors, Ernst & Young, on the appropriateness and consistency
of the accounting policies that have been adopted by the Company. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the interim results and the interim report
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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Other Information (continued)
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Other Information (continued)
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION EHEEER

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in information 1815 F T #7 BIZE13.51B(1) 1§ A ARIEE 2
of the Company’s director is set out below. BREHHRIN T o

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan, Clara ceased to be a member of the Listing MGzt R _E-_—_F+tANBTHE
Committee of the Stock Exchange on 8 July 2022. AR EIMEZEE 2KE °
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